
 

Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Regular Board of Trustee Meeting Agenda 

10615 Green Mountain Falls Road 
Tuesday, February 19, 2019   7:00 p.m. 

 
 

WORKSHOP:  Public Input on Ordinance 2019-01, An Ordinance Repealing Article V Of Chapter 2 
Of The Green Mountain Falls Municipal Code Concerning Social Security And Retirement 
 
REGULAR MEETING: 

1. CALL TO ORDER / ROLL CALL / PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 

2. ADDITIONS, DELETIONS, OR CORRECTION TO THE AGENDA 
 

3. CONSENT AGENDA 
a. Approve Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes February 5, 2019 
b. Bring into Record Bills Run February 13-14, 2019 

 
4. NEW BUSINESS 

a.  Consideration of Resolution 2019-07, A Resolution Concerning The Issuance Of Special Events 
Permits By The Town Of Green Mountain Falls Board Of Trustees Acting As The Local Licensing 
Authority  
 

LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY ACTIONS 
 

1. Consideration of the Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association Chapter 3-2 Colorado 
Department of Revenue Special Events Permit for Fermented Malt Beverage license 
 

RECONVENE REGULAR MEETING   

b.   Update on Flood Recovery Efforts and Consideration of Design/Engineering Contract  

c.  Consideration of the Green Box Arts’ Application for Revocable Permit for Temporary Art 
Display Above Gazebo Lake  

d.  Consideration of Green Box Arts’ Special Events Application for Weekend at the Park 
event to be held July 4-6, 2019 at various locations near the Farm Stand 

e.  Consideration of Resolution 2019-06, A Resolution Of The Town Of Green Mountain 
Falls, Colorado, Designating Authorized Signatories On Town Bank Accounts And 
Individuals Authorized To Conduct Online Banking On Behalf Of Town 

f.  Discussion Regarding Temporary Vendor Registration and Sales Tax Collection 

g.  Discussion of the Disposition of the Old Sheriff’s Office at 10454 Ute Pass Ave and Old 
Town Hall site on 7035 Oak St  

 
 
 
 
  



5. OLD BUSINESS 
a. Public Hearing and Final Adoption, Ordinance 2019-01, An Ordinance Repealing 

Article V Of Chapter 2 Of The Green Mountain Falls Municipal Code Concerning 
Social Security And Retirement 
 

b. Discussion Regarding Town Adoption Process of the Employee Handbook and other 
Employment Policies  
 

c. Discussion Regarding Procurement Policy and Trustee Liaison Roles  
 

6. PUBLIC INPUT: 3 Minutes per speaker 

 
7. CORRESPONDENCE 

     a. Planning Commission Minutes February 12, 2019 

 
8. REPORTS 

a. Trustees 
b. Town Manager 
c. Town Clerk 
e.   Public Works 

 
      9. ADJOURN 



 

 TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS 
Regular Board of Trustee Meeting 

February 5, 2019 – 7:00 P.M. 
 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 
Board Members Present 
Trustee Margaret Peterson 
Trustee Tyler Stevens 
Trustee Katharine Guthrie 
 
Interim Town Manager 
Jason Wells 
 
Town Clerk 
Laura Kotewa 
 
Interim Town Clerk 
Judy Egbert 
 

Board Members Absent 
Trustee Chris Quinn 
Mayor Jane Newberry 
 
Town Attorney 
Not present 
 
Public Works 
 
Marshal’s Dept. 
Virgil Hodges 

 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call/Pledge of Allegiance 
Mayor Pro Tem Stevens called the meeting to order at 7:07 p.m.  The Pledge of Allegiance was 
recited. 
 
2. Additions, Deletions, or Corrections to the Agenda 
 
Trustee Peterson made a motion, seconded by Trustee Guthrie, to accept the Agenda with the 
most recent version (with our Attorney edits and comments) of Ordinance 2018-12 being 
distributed to Board Members and available to the public.  Motion passed. 
 
 
 
3.  Consent Agenda 

a. Approve Board of Trustees Meeting Minutes January 15, 2019 
b. Bring Into Record Bills Run January 29, 2019 
c. Bring Into Record New STR Application Approval 

 
Trustee Peterson made a motion, seconded by Trustee Guthrie to accept the Consent Agenda, 
with the year changed to 2019 for the January 15th Minutes.  Motion carried. 
   
 
  



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Regular Meeting Minutes  February 5, 2019 
Page 2 of 4  
 
4.  NEW BUSINESS 
 

a. Consideration of a Mayor Drafted Letter of Support for Colorado Springs 
Utilities/U.S. Forest Service Watershed Protection Project (Wildfire Mitigation) 
 

A presentation was given by Mr. Lyle Laverty with discussion and questions from the board and 
citizens present at the meeting.  Mr. Laverty mentioned that the community can lend support by 
contacting Brian Ferebee at bferebee@fs.fed.us ; please CC Lyle@thelavertygroup.com. 
 
Trustee Peterson made a motion to approve the letter written by the Mayor to be signed and 
mailed. The motion was seconded by Trustee Guthrie, and passed by unanimous vote. 

 
b. Consideration of the Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association Chapter 3-2 

Special Event Application-Pikes Peak Mission to Zero 
 

A presentation and explanation of the proposed event was shared by Mr. Art Loureiro.  An 
application has been submitted to the Green Box Arts Project for use of their town properties 
to support the event.  Questions were addressed as received from both the board and the 
public. 
 
Trustee Peterson made a motion, seconded by Trustee Guthrie to approve the submitted 
Special Event Permit Application.  Motion passed. 
 
Fees are yet to be determined, and paid according to the direction on the application form. 

 
 

c. Consideration of Acceptance of the Final 2017 Municipal Audit as presented by 
Kyle Logan of Logan and Associates 
 

Since Mr. Kyle Logan was unable to attend, Mr. Jason Wells shared some information received 
from Mr. Logan and addressed the questions raised by the board. 
 
Trustee Guthrie moved, Trustee Peterson seconded, that the Audit be approved.  Motion 
carried. 

 
 

e.   Introduction of Ordinance 2019-01, An Ordinance Repealing Article V Of 
 Chapter 2 Of The Green Mountain Falls Municipal Code Concerning Social 
 Security And  Retirement 

Trustee Peterson made the motion to set this matter for Public Hearing and Final Adoption at 
the Board’s next scheduled meeting, February 19, 2019.  Motion passed. 

  

mailto:bferebee@fs.fed.us
mailto:Lyle@thelavertygroup.com


Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Regular Meeting Minutes  February 5, 2019 
Page 3 of 4  
 

f.    Resolution 2019-05, A Resolution Of The Town Of Green Mountain Falls, 
 Colorado, Approving And Adopting A Revised Employee Handbook 

Motion was made by Trustee Guthrie, seconded by Trustee Peterson to accept all presented 
changes to the handbook and to approve the Resolution. Motion passed. 

Direction was given to staff to add discussion items addressing board approval for both the 
Handbook and Procurement items to the next Board Meeting Agenda.  

  
g.   Consideration of Approval for the Brochure and Job Description to begin the 

recruitment process for the Town Manager position 
 

After relevant discussion of the selection process and posting timeframe, Trustee Peterson 
made a motion, seconded by Trustee Guthrie, to approve the brochure and job description. 
Motion passed by unanimous vote. 

 
 
5.  OLD BUSINESS 
 

a.   Public Hearing and Final Adoption, Ordinance 2018-12, An Ordinance Repealing 
And Reenacting Article XV Of Chapter 10 Of The Green Mountain Falls Municipal 
Code Regarding Fire Restrictions – with requested revisions made December 28, 
2018 

 
This item of business was continued from the January 15, 2019 meeting.  A Public Hearing was 
reconvened at 8:35pm.  Ann Esch questioned the definition of a fireplace spark arrestor.  There 
being no one further wishing to speak the hearing adjourned at 8:37pm.     
 
Trustee Peterson made the motion, seconded by Trustee Guthrie, to Adopt Ordinance 2018-12 
with the following additional changes to the revision.  First, the table and accompanying text is 
amended to read “Gasoline operated power tools equipped with a spark arrestor” in place of 
“chain saws with spark arrestors”, and second, under Sec. 10-334 number (1), “A person age 18 
years of age or older” in place of “A person over 18 years of age” 
 
6.  PUBLIC INPUT – 3 Minutes Per Speaker 
 
Town citizen Judith Piazza spoke about a parking issue due to right of way placement on her 
property. 

 
 
7. CORRESPONDENCE:  
 
The board acknowledged the receipt of the Planning Commission and Trails Committee 
minutes. 
 



Town of Green Mountain Falls 
Regular Meeting Minutes  February 5, 2019 
Page 4 of 4  
 
 
 
8. REPORTS 
 

a. Trustees – There are 4-5 new members of the Chamber, with another person 
showing interest.  Trustee Peterson is acting as Enforcement Liaison for Bronc Days. 

 
 
 
b. Town Manager – Touched on highlights from his submitted report. 
 
 
 
c. Town Clerk – Touched on highlights from her submitted report. 
 
 
 
d. Marshal – The Marshal shared a verbal report of items addressed in January. 
 
 
 
e.   Public Works – Written report submitted. 
 
 

 
 
9.  Adjournment 
Meeting adjourned at 9:37 p.m. 

 
 
________________________________ 
Jane Newberry,  Mayor  
 
 

_______________________________________ 
Laura J. Kotewa 
 



4:37 PM

02t't3t19

Accrual Basis

Town of Green Mountain Falls
Expenses by Vendor Summary

February 13, 2019

4 Rivers
ADD Staff
Auto Truck Group
Black Hills Energy
CEBT
Century Link
Chris Wholey
Colorado Springs Utilities
Comcast
GovPro Consulting
Hoffman, Parker, Wilson & Garberry
LAW OFFICES OF DEBRA EILAND
Logan Simpson Design lnc.
Sanders Consulting, LLC
VANDERHOEF, Danny
Waste Management
Wilson & Company, lnc., Egineers & Archit
Woodland Hardware and Home

TOTAL

Feb 13, 19 /
yrG t(u,oa /
376 53 r'

1,067.10 /
585.97 v

3,312.40 /
66.51 I

1oo.oo /
586 22(
P3.92,

1,880.00 //
1,267.50r .

55.00 '/
9,409.16 /

165.00 r'
15.50v

185.54/,
1.g5g.25r'

71.24 y'

?n67tfiu7.4o

Page 1



12:31 PM

02t14t19

Accrual Basis

Town of Green Mountain Falls
Expenses by Vendor Summary

February 14,2019

Feb 14,19

'100.00FBI National Academy Associates

TOTAL 1t10.00

Page 1



 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA MEMO 

 
DATE: February 15, 2019 AGENDA NO. 4. SUBJECT: 

Resolution Opting for Local-Only 
approval for Special Events Permits 

Presented by:  

Laura Kotewa, Town Clerk 
 
 
Recommend action: 
Adopt Resolution No. 2019-07 
 
Background: 
 
In 2011, the Special Events Code (now known as the Colorado Liquor Code – Special Events Permits) was amended 
to allow Local Authorities to choose to approve/disapprove Special Events Permits on its own authority without 
further action by the State Liquor Licensing Authority.  This came about because the State does not have an opinion 
about what events are desired in the numerous jurisdictions; their concern is compliance once the decision is made. 
 
Local Authorities must take action to choose this.  If no action is taken, the process remains a dual approval, and the 
state must also approve applications before they can be conducted.   
 
Regulation specifies that an application is to be submitted at least 30 days prior to the event.  Because of the time it 
takes to secure state approval, it is not possible to turn an application around in 30 days.  Currently it would take 
about 90, with that window changing as state efficiencies ebb and flow. 
 
Opting for the local-only approval means a better service to our customers, while removing an unnecessary level of 
government review into what is truly a local decision.  All other standards of the application process remain in place.  
Additionally, once approved the Town is required to notify the State of the approval, so there is still a tracking 
mechanism in place.  The State retains all rights to enforcement. 
 
 
Issue Before the Board 
Does the Board wish to adopt the proposed resolution? 
 
Alternatives 

• Adopt the Resolution as drafted. 
• Adopt the Resolution with changes. 
• Decline to act and continue operating under the existing dual approval process. 

 
Conclusion 
Choosing the local option provides greater customer service, enables a more timely processing, and removes some of 
the burden on state staff. 
  



1 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019 - 07 
 

A RESOLUTION CONCERNING THE ISSUANCE OF SPECIAL EVENTS PERMITS 
BY THE TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS BOARD OF TRUSTEES ACTING AS 

THE LOCAL LICENSING AUTHORITY  
 
  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Article 5, Title 44, of the Colorado Revised Statutes, otherwise known 
as the Colorado Liquor Code – Special Events Permits allows Local Authorities to elect not to notify the 
State Licensing Authority to obtain the state’s approval or disapproval of an application for a Special 
Events Permit; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is unclear whether the Town of Green Mountain Falls has chosen this option; and  
 
WHEREAS, Regulation 47-1002(C) requires application to be filed with the Local Licensing 

Authority not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of the event; and 
 
WHEREAS, an application that is timely filed under this Regulation may or may not have enough 

time to be process through both the local and state process within the thirty days; and 
 
WHEREAS, The Town wishes to provide the most time-efficient application processing for its 

customers without causing an increase to the required application deadline; and  
 
WHEREAS, opting for the local-only approval of special events permits would ensure that 

applicants are served in a timely manner; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, COLORADO, THAT: 
 
Section 1.  Pursuant to the authority contained in CRS 44-5-107(5)(a), the Green Mountain Falls 

Board of Trustees, sitting as the Local Licensing Authority, elects not to notify the state licensing authority 
to obtain the state licensing authority’s approval or disapproval for a special events permit. 

 
Section 2.  All other requirements contained in the Colorado Liquor Code and associated 

Regulations remain applicable. 
 
INTRODUCED, READ and PASSED this 19th day of February 2019. 

 
 

TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, 
 COLORADO 

       
______________________________ 
Jane Newberry, Mayor 

(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________________________                                                          
Laura Kotewa, Town Clerk 



 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA MEMO 

 
DATE: February 14, 2019 4:00pm AGENDA NO 1 under 

Local Licensing Authority 
Actions 

SUBJECT: Special Events Permit for 
one day liquor licensing 

Presented by:  

Laura Kotewa, Town Clerk 
 
 
Recommend action: Potential public hearing in consideration of the Special Events Permit (license to serve beer) 
application submitted by the Combat Vets Motorcycle Association for the Mission to Zero Event to be held August 
11, 2019. 
 
Background: The application requirements for posting have been met on February 5, 2019.  The opportunity for 
comments expires on Friday, February 15, 2019 at 5pm.  To date, no comments have been submitted.  If there are no 
comments are submitted, a hearing is not required.  There will be an update given at the BOT meeting if any 
comments are submitted Friday.  
 
There is no background check required, and the board has opportunity to consider good moral character before 
approval. 
 
We are researching whether the Town of Green Mountain Falls has opted in for Town vs State Approval for such 
Permits.  There will be an update at the Board Meeting. 
 
 
Issue Before the Board: The Application for Special Events Permit. 
 
 
Alternatives: 
 1. Approve the Permit as submitted. 
 2. Deny the Permit with explanation and opportunity to address concerns. 
 3. Deny the Permit. 
  
 
Conclusion: Approval of this permit is the next step for the Combat Veterans Motorcycle Association in planning 
their Mission to Zero Special Event to be held on August 11, 2019 that was approved at the February 5, 2019 Board 
Meeting. 
 



DR 8439 112:.12t1118)

:?h?H,?::fj:,itl*'# 
oF REVENTTE Application for a Special Events

(303)205-2:100 pgfmit

Departmental Use Only

ln order to qualify for a Special Events Permit, You Must Be Nonprofit
and One of the Following (See back for details.)

E r,t 
"ti"

n (;hartereO Branch, Lodge Or Chapter

ffi {X n National Organization Or Sociely

! Fl"tlgior. lnstitution

Philanthroplc lnstitution

Political Candidate

Municrpalrty Owning Arts Facilities

E Sociat

n Fraternal

E Patriot c

E Potiticat

tr
n
!

LIAB Type ol Special Event Applicant is Applying for:
2110 ll lMalt, Vinous And Spirituous L quor $25.00 Per Day

2i 70 N F:ermented Merlt Beveragr: $10.00 Per Day

DO NOT WRITE IN THIS SPACE
Liquor Permit Number

'1 . Nane of r\pp1l6311 Orqar izatron or Pc,lttrca Candidare State Sales Tax Number (Required)

z7-358 L17 7
2 Mailing Address of Organization or Potiticdl Candidate T

( nclJde slreet crtv/iown ano ZIP)

\lr, Brx 3lSoV
coloJo :ftxa9, @, gontt

Address of Placeio Have Special Event
(inctude streer, ciry/tow. d1d ZIP)

6qqo L^V
/r^^rlol^:

*,
F^l\s, to,

3

Name Date of Birth Home Address (Street, City, State ZIP) | Phone Number

4. Pres./Sec'v of Orq. or Po,rLcal C

Aasl=."r Voil Ll ltzltlbT el A*[^\o J \r, C .5, (0 , 86r I fi-,ttq-6lsl
5. Event Manaoer

Ao! l, 11575 C\.-t*t- Pl Ac-s $+'.'rr(- t-.,'rt;J;d. to; ' -kotsi: l7n-33o'1@l
6. Has Apprl cant Organization or Political Candtdate been

lssued er Special Event Permit this Calendar Year?
--J

Xl ,o f__J vrs How r\,4A\Y DAys?

; premises now licensed under state liquor or

E ro -l ves ro wHoru?

8,DoeStheApplicantHaVePoSSeSSionorWrittenPermiSSionfortheUSeofThePremiSes.oo"-,oun."oi_

List Below the Exact Date(s) for Which Applicalion is Berng l\4ade for permit

m

m

Dare 6 - ll- ZO l7 i oate

Hours rrom l ?i OO f . I tour,r From

ro b'.O01-I-_ ,"

Date

Hours From .m

To m.

Date

Hours From .m

mTo

Hours From

To

.m

.m

Oath of Applicant
I declarr-' under pena ty of perjurry in the second degree that I have read the foregoing application and all attachments thereto, and
that all information therein is true, correct, and complete to the best of my knowledge.W*4

Number ofCityn
n

Report and Approval of Local Licensing Authority (City or County)
The forergoing appliczrtion has been examined and the premises, business conducted and character of the applicant is satisfactory,
and we d,c report thal such permit, if granted, will comply with the provisions of Tiile 44, Article 5, C.R.S., as amended.

THEREFORE, THIS APPLICATION IS APPROVED.
Local Licensing Authority

sgnalure -- 

-

(City or nty clerk

DIO NOT I,VRITE IN THIS SPACE. FOR DEPARTMENT oF REVENUE USE oNLY

Liability lnformation

License Account Number Liability Date \ State Total

-7s0 (99e)

(lnstruct ons on Reverse Side)

L,cur sP- \sc

Title Date

$



DR 8439 \12t21t18)

/\pplication lnformation and Checklist

tr Application musl: first be submitted to the local licensing authority (city or county) at least thirty (30) days prior to the event.

tr The premises to I)e licensecl must be posted at least ten (10) days before a hearing can be held. (44-5-106 C.R.S.)

tr An arpproved app ication must be received by the liquor enforcement division at least ten (10) days prior to the event.

tr Check payable to the Colorado Department Of Revenue

(44-5-102 C.R.S.)
A Special Event Permit issued under this article may be issued to an organization, whether or not presently licensed
underArticles 4 an,l 3 of this title, which has been incorporated underthe laws of this state forthe purpose of a social,
fraternal, patriotic, ;rolitical or athletic nature, and not for pecuniary gain or which is a regularly chartered branch, lodge
or chaprt,er of a national organization or society organized for such purposes and being non profit in nature, or which is
a regularly established religious or philanthropic institution, and to any political candidate who has filed the necessary
reports elnd statem,ents with the Secretary of State pursuant to Article 45 of Title 1, C.R.S. A Special Event permit may
be issued to any municipality owning arts facilities at which productions or performances of an artistic or cultural nature
are presented for use at suc;h facilities.

lf an ev'e,nt is cancerlled, the application fees and the day(s) are forfeited.

The following supporting documents must be attached to this application for a permit to be issued:

tr Aprp,ropriate fee.

tr Diagram of the area to be licensed (not largerthalS l12" X ll" reflecting bars, walls, partitions, ingress, egress and dimensions.

Note: lf the event is to be held outside, please submit evidence of intended control, i.e., fencing, ropes, barriers, etc.

E Copry of deed, lerase, or written permission of owner for use of the premises.

t] Cerrlificate of go,:d corporerte standing (NONPROFIT) issued by Secretary of State within last two years; or

tr lf not incorporatt;d, a NONPROFIT charter; or

tr lf a political CanCidate, attiach copies of reports and statements that were filed with the Secretary of State.



+:
Li*'', --

ia -[ffi
x
x

::i

"'t:l,l{rll
Ii
Qr)r
Qi{t
ti
Qtt
9r
Qr
Qt
Or\,
a. 3;t

':t.

,1

*

t

I

t

?
-3-+
tl
J



1                                                                        2/15/19 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

THIS AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES is made and entered into this 
_____ day of ____________, 2019, by and between the Town of Green Mountain Falls, a Colorado 
municipal corporation having an address of 10615 Unit B, Green Mountain Falls Road, Green 
Mountain Falls, Colorado, 80819 (the “Town”), and Wilson & Company,  an independent 
consultant with a principal place of business at 5755 Mark Dabling Boulevard Suite 220, Colorado 
Springs, 80919 and phone number of 719-520-5800 (“Consultant") (collectively the "Parties"). 

WHEREAS, the Town requires professional services; and 

WHEREAS, Consultant has held itself out to the Town as having the requisite expertise and 
experience to perform the required professional services. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for the consideration hereinafter set forth, the receipt and sufficiency 
of which are hereby acknowledged, the Parties hereto agree as follows: 

I. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

A. Consultant shall furnish all labor and materials required for the complete and prompt 
execution and performance of all duties, obligations, and responsibilities which are described or 
reasonably implied from the Scope of Services set forth in the attached Exhibit A. 

B. A change in the Scope of Services shall not be effective unless authorized as an 
amendment to this Agreement.  If Consultant proceeds without such written authorization, 
Consultant shall be deemed to have waived any claim for additional compensation, including a 
claim based on the theory of unjust enrichment, quantum merit or implied contract.  Except as 
expressly provided herein, no agent, employee, or representative of the Town is authorized to 
modify any term of this Agreement, either directly or implied by a course of action. 

II. COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF WORK 

Consultant shall commence work as set forth in the Scope of Services.  Except as may be 
changed in writing by the Town, the Scope of Services shall be complete and Consultant shall 
furnish the Town the specified deliverables as provided in Exhibit A. 

III. COMPENSATION 

A. In consideration for the completion of the Scope of Services by Consultant, the 
Town shall pay Consultant at the rates set forth in Exhibit A, an amount not to exceed Sixty Three 
Thousand Three Hundred Ninety Five Dollars ($63,395.00).  This maximum amount shall be the 
guaranteed maximum price for the Scope of Services and shall include all fees, costs and expenses 
incurred by Consultant, and no additional amounts shall be paid by the Town for such fees, costs 
and expenses.   

B. Notwithstanding the maximum amount specified in Paragraph A hereof, Consultant 
shall be paid only for work performed.  If Consultant completes the Scope of Services for a lesser 
amount than the maximum amount, Consultant shall be paid the lesser amount, not the maximum 
amount. 



2                                                                        2/15/19 

IV. PROFESSIONAL RESPONSIBILITY 

A. Consultant hereby warrants that it is qualified to assume the responsibilities and 
render the services described herein and has all requisite corporate authority and professional 
licenses in good standing, required by law. 

B. The work performed by Consultant shall be in accordance with generally accepted 
professional practices and the level of competency presently maintained by other practicing 
professional firms in the same or similar type of work in the applicable community.  The work and 
services to be performed by Consultant hereunder shall be done in compliance with applicable laws, 
ordinances, rules and regulations. 

C. The Town’s review, approval or acceptance of, or payment for any services shall not 
be construed to operate as a waiver of any rights under this Agreement or of any cause of action 
arising out of the performance of this Agreement. 

D. Because the Town has hired Consultant for its professional expertise, Consultant 
agrees not to employ subcontractors to perform any of the work required under the Scope of 
Services.   

V. OWNERSHIP 

The materials, items, and work specified in the Scope of Services, together with any and all 
related documentation and materials provided or developed by Consultant shall be exclusively 
owned by the Town.  Consultant expressly acknowledges and agrees that all work performed under 
the Scope of Services constitutes a “work made for hire.”  To the extent, if at all, it shall not 
constitute a “work made for hire,” Consultant hereby transfers, sells, and assigns to the Town all of 
its right, title, and interest in such work.  All pre-existing work and intellectual property owned by 
Consultant and incorporated into the Scope of Services shall remain the sole property of Consultant, 
provided that such material is hereby licensed to the Town as reasonably contemplated in the Scope 
of Services.   

VI. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

Consultant is an independent contractor.  Notwithstanding any other provision of this 
Agreement, all personnel assigned by Consultant to perform work under the terms of this 
Agreement shall be, and remain at all times, employees or agents of Consultant for all purposes.  
Consultant shall make no representation that it is a Town employee for any purposes.   

VII. INSURANCE 

A. Consultant agrees to procure and maintain, at its own cost, a policy or policies of 
insurance sufficient to insure against all liability, claims, demands, and other obligations assumed 
by Consultant pursuant to this Agreement.  Such insurance shall be in addition to any other 
insurance requirements imposed by law.   

B. Consultant shall procure and maintain, and shall cause any subcontractor of 
Consultant to procure and maintain, the minimum insurance coverages listed below.  Such 
coverages shall be procured and maintained with forms and insurers acceptable to the Town.  In the 



3                                                                        2/15/19 

case of any claims-made policy, the necessary retroactive dates and extended reporting periods shall 
be procured to maintain such continuous coverage. 

1. Worker's compensation insurance to cover obligations imposed by applicable 
law for any employee engaged in the performance of work under this Agreement, and 
Employer's Liability insurance with minimum limits of five hundred thousand dollars 
($500,000) each accident, one million dollars ($1,000,000) disease – policy limit, and one 
million dollars ($1,000,000) disease – each employee.  Evidence of qualified self-insured 
status may be substituted for the worker's compensation requirements of this Paragraph. 

2. Commercial general liability insurance with minimum combined single limits 
of one million dollars ($1,000,000) each occurrence and one million dollars ($1,000,000) 
general aggregate.  The policy shall be applicable to all premises and operations.  The policy 
shall include coverage for bodily injury, broad form property damage (including completed 
operations), personal injury (including coverage for contractual and employee acts), blanket 
contractual, products, and completed operations.  The policy shall contain a severability of 
interests provision, and shall be endorsed to include the Town and the Town's officers, 
employees, and contractors as additional insureds.  No additional insured endorsement shall 
contain any exclusion for bodily injury or property damage arising from completed 
operations. 

3. Professional liability insurance with minimum limits of six hundred thousand 
dollars ($600,000) each claim and one million dollars ($1,000,000) general aggregate. 

C. Any insurance carried by the Town, its officers, its employees, or its contractors 
shall be excess and not contributory insurance to that provided by Consultant.  Consultant shall be 
solely responsible for any deductible losses under any policy. 

D. Consultant shall provide to the Town a certificate of insurance, completed by 
Consultant's insurance agent, as evidence that policies providing the required coverages, conditions, 
and minimum limits are in full force and effect.  The certificate shall identify this Agreement and 
shall provide that the coverages afforded under the policies shall not be cancelled, terminated or 
materially changed until at least thirty (30) days prior written notice has been given to the Town.  
The Town reserves the right to request and receive a certified copy of any policy and any 
endorsement thereto. 

E. Failure on the part of Consultant to procure or maintain the insurance required herein 
shall constitute a material breach of this Agreement upon which the Town may immediately 
terminate this Agreement, or at its discretion, the Town may procure or renew any such policy or 
any extended reporting period thereto and may pay any and all premiums in connection therewith, 
and all monies so paid by the Town shall be repaid by Consultant to the Town upon demand, or the 
Town may offset the cost of the premiums against any monies due to Consultant from the Town. 



4                                                                        2/15/19 

VIII. INDEMNIFICATION 

Consultant agrees to indemnify and hold harmless the Town and its officers, insurers, 
volunteers, representative, agents, employees, heirs and assigns from and against all claims, liability, 
damages, losses, expenses and demands, including attorney fees, on account of injury, loss, or 
damage, including without limitation claims arising from bodily injury, personal injury, sickness, 
disease, death, property loss or damage, or any other loss of any kind whatsoever, which arise out of 
or are in any manner connected with this Agreement if such injury, loss, or damage is caused in 
whole or in part by, the act, omission, error, professional error, mistake, negligence, or other fault of 
Consultant, any subcontractor of Consultant, or any officer, employee, representative, or agent of 
Consultant, or which arise out of a worker's compensation claim of any employee of Consultant or 
of any employee of any subcontractor of Consultant.  Consultant's liability under this indemnification 
provision shall be to the fullest extent of, but shall not exceed, that amount represented by the degree or 
percentage of negligence or fault attributable to Consultant, any subcontractor of Consultant, or any 
officer, employee, representative, or agent of Consultant or of any subcontractor of Consultant.  If 
Consultant is providing architectural, engineering, surveying or other design services under this 
Agreement, the extent of Consultant's obligation to indemnify and hold harmless the Town may be 
determined only after Consultant's liability or fault has been determined by adjudication, alternative 
dispute resolution or otherwise resolved by mutual agreement between the Parties, as provided by 
C.R.S. § 13-50.5-102(8)(c). 

IX. TERMINATION 

This Agreement shall terminate when all the work described in the Scope of Services is 
completed to the Town's satisfaction, or upon the Town's providing Consultant with seven (7) days 
advance written notice, whichever occurs first.  If the Agreement is terminated by the Town's 
issuance of written notice, the Town shall pay Consultant for all work authorized and completed 
prior to the date of termination.   

X. ILLEGAL ALIENS 

A. Certification.  By entering into this Agreement, Consultant hereby certifies that, at 
the time of this certification, it does not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien who will 
perform work under the Agreement and that Consultant will participate in either the E-Verify 
Program administered by the United States Department of Homeland Security and Social Security 
Administration or the Department Program administered by the Colorado Department of Labor and 
Employment in order to confirm the employment eligibility of all employees who are newly hired 
for employment to perform work under the Agreement 

B. Prohibited Acts.  Consultant shall not: 

(1) Knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform work under 
this Contract; or 

(2) Enter into a contract with a subcontractor that fails to certify to Consultant 
that the subcontractor shall not knowingly employ or contract with an illegal alien to perform 
work under this Contract.   

C. Verification. 



5                                                                        2/15/19 

(1) If Consultant has employees, Consultant has confirmed the employment 
eligibility of all employees who are newly hired for employment to perform work under the 
Agreement through participation in either the E-Verify Program or the Department Program.   

(2) Consultant shall not use the E-Verify Program or Department Program 
procedures to undertake pre-employment screening of job applicants while this Contract is 
being performed.   

(3) If Consultant obtains actual knowledge that a subcontractor performing work 
under this Contract knowingly employs or contracts with an illegal alien who is performing 
work under the Agreement, Consultant shall: 

1. Notify the subcontractor and the Town within three (3) days that 
Consultant has actual knowledge that the subcontractor is employing or contracting 
with an illegal alien who is performing work under the Agreement; and 

2. Terminate the subcontract with the subcontractor if within three (3) 
days of receiving the notice required pursuant to subsection (1) hereof, the 
subcontractor does not stop employing or contracting with the illegal alien who is 
performing work under the Agreement; except that Consultant shall not terminate the 
contract with the subcontractor if during such three (3) days the subcontractor 
provides information to establish that the subcontractor has not knowingly employed 
or contracted with an illegal alien who is performing work under the Agreement.  

D. Duty to Comply with Investigations.  Consultant shall comply with any reasonable 
request by the Colorado Department of Labor and Employment made in the course of an 
investigation conducted pursuant to C.R.S. § 8-17.5-102(5)(a) to ensure that Consultant is 
complying with the terms of this Contract. 

E. If Consultant does not have employees, Consultant shall sign the “No Employee 
Affidavit” attached hereto. 

F. If Consultant wishes to verify the lawful presence of newly hired employees who 
perform work under the Agreement via the Department Program, Consultant shall sign the 
“Department Program Affidavit” attached hereto.   

XI. MISCELLANEOUS 

A. Governing Law and Venue.  This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
State of Colorado, and any legal action concerning the provisions hereof shall be brought in El Paso 
County, Colorado. 

B. No Waiver.  Delays in enforcement or the waiver of any one or more defaults or 
breaches of this Agreement by the Town shall not constitute a waiver of any of the other terms or 
obligation of this Agreement. 

C. Integration.  This Agreement and any attached exhibits constitute the entire 
Agreement between Consultant and the Town, superseding all prior oral or written communications.   

D. Third Parties.  There are no intended third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement. 



6                                                                        2/15/19 

E. Notice.  Any notice under this Agreement shall be in writing, and shall be deemed 
sufficient when directly presented or sent pre-paid, first class United States Mail to the party at the 
address set forth on the first page of this Agreement. 

 
F. Severability.  If any provision of this Agreement is found by a court of competent 

jurisdiction to be unlawful or unenforceable for any reason, the remaining provisions hereof shall 
remain in full force and effect. 

G. Modification.  This Agreement may only be modified upon written agreement of the 
Parties. 

H. Assignment.  Neither this Agreement nor any of the rights or obligations of the 
Parties hereto, shall be assigned by either party without the written consent of the other. 

I. Governmental Immunity.  The Town, its officers, and its employees, are relying on, 
and do not waive or intend to waive by any provision of this Agreement, the monetary limitations 
(presently three hundred fifty thousand ($350,000 per person and nine hundred ninety thousand 
($990,000) per occurrence) or any other rights, immunities, and protections provided by the 
Colorado Governmental Immunity Act, C.R.S. § 24-10-101, et seq., as amended, or otherwise 
available to the Town and its officers or employees. 

J. Rights and Remedies.  The rights and remedies of the Town under this Agreement 
are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by law.  The expiration of this Agreement 
shall in no way limit the Town's legal or equitable remedies, or the period in which such remedies 
may be asserted, for work negligently or defectively performed. 

K. Subject to Annual Appropriations.  Consistent with Article X, § 20 of the Colorado 
Constitution, any financial obligations of the Town not performed during the current fiscal year are 
subject to annual appropriation, and thus any obligations of the Town hereunder shall extend only to 
monies currently appropriated and shall not constitute a mandatory charge, requirement or liability 
beyond the current fiscal year. 

[Remainder of page intentionally blank.  Signatures on following page.] 



7                                                                        2/15/19 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date first 
set forth above. 

TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, 
COLORADO 

 
____________________________________ 
___________________________ 

 
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Office of the Town Clerk 
 
 
 

CONSULTANT 
 
 
By: __________________________________ 

   
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF   ) 
 

 

The foregoing Professional Agreement for Services was subscribed, sworn to and 
acknowledged before me this _______ day of ________________, 20_____ by 
________________________,as _________________ of _____________________________. 

My commission expires: 

 (S E A L)     ___________________________________ 

Notary Public 
 



                                                                        2/15/19 

EXHIBIT A 
 

SCOPE OF SERVICES 



                                                                        2/15/19 

NO EMPLOYEE AFFIDAVIT  
 [To be completed only if Consultant does not have any employees] 

 
1. Check and complete one: 

  I, _______________________________, am a sole proprietor doing business as 
_______________________________.  I do not currently employ any individuals.  Should I 
employ any employees during the term of my Agreement with the Town, I certify that I will comply 
with the lawful presence verification requirements outlined in that Agreement.   
OR 

  I, ______________________________, am the sole owner/member/shareholder of 
_______________________________, a ______________________________ [specify type of 
entity – i.e., corporation, limited liability company], that does not currently employ any individuals.  
Should I employ any individuals during the term of my Agreement with the Town, I certify that I 
will comply with the lawful presence verification requirements outlined in that Agreement.   
2. Check one. 

  I am a United States citizen or legal permanent resident. 
 

The Town must verify this statement by reviewing one of the following items: 
 A valid Colorado driver's license or a Colorado identification card; 
 A United States military card or a military dependent's identification card; 
 A United States Coast Guard Merchant Mariner card; 
 A Native American tribal document; 
 In the case of a resident of another state, the driver’s license or state-issued 

identification card from the state of residence, if that state requires the applicant to 
prove lawful presence prior to the issuance of the identification card; or 

 Any other documents or combination of documents listed in the Town’s “Acceptable 
Documents for Lawful Presence Verification” chart that prove both the contractor’s 
citizenship/lawful presence and identity. 

OR 
  I am otherwise lawfully present in the United States pursuant to federal law. 

Consultant must verify this statement through the Federal Systematic Alien Verification of 
Entitlement (“SAVE”) program,  and provide such verification to the Town. 

 
____________________________________   ________________________ 
Consultant Signature       Date 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF   ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was subscribed, sworn to and acknowledged before me  _______ 
day of ________________, 20_____ by ________________________,as _________________ of 
_____________________________. 

 
My commission expires: 

 
 (S E A L)     ___________________________________ 

Notary Public 



                                                                        2/15/19 

DEPARTMENT PROGRAM AFFIDAVIT  
 

[To be completed if Consultant participates in the  
Department of Labor Lawful Presence Verification Program] 

  
I, ________________________, as a public contractor under contract with the Town of 

Green Mountain Falls (the “Town”), hereby affirm that: 
 
1. I have examined or will examine the legal work status of all employees who are 

newly hired for employment to perform work under this public contract for services (“Contract”) 
with the Town within twenty (20) days after such hiring date; 

 
2. I have retained or will retain file copies of all documents required by 8 U.S.C. § 

1324a, which verify the employment eligibility and identity of newly hired employees who perform 
work under this Contract; and 

 
3. I have not and will not alter or falsify the identification documents for my newly 

hired employees who perform work under this Contract. 
 
 
 

____________________________________   ________________________ 
Consultant Signature       Date 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF COLORADO  ) 

) ss. 
COUNTY OF   ) 
 

The foregoing instrument was subscribed, sworn to and acknowledged before me  _______ 
day of ________________, 20_____ by ________________________,as _________________ of 
_____________________________. 

 
My commission expires: 

  
 
 (S E A L)     ___________________________________ 

Notary Public 
 

 
 

 
 



 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA MEMO 

 
DATE: February 13, 2019 AGENDA NO  SUBJECT: 

Revocable Permit Application- Green 
Box Arts 

Presented by:  

Laura Kotewa, Town Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 
Recommend action: 
 
Consider approval Green Box Art’s Revocable Permit Application. 
 
 
Background:  
 
Green Box Arts would like to host an art display from July 1 - September 2, 2019 15 feet above the Gazebo on the 
lake, to be open during park hours (except on Friday and Saturday to remain open until 11pm).  It can be taken down 
during inclement weather (by Green Box staff) then reinstalled. Temporary towers may need to be installed to anchor 
the display, but could be installed as permanent features if it would be beneficial to the town. 
 
To view a video clip go to: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=NuA0k08Luio&feature=youtu.be 
 
 
Issue Before the Board: 
 
Does the Board wish to approve the Application for the Green Box Revocable Permit? 

 
 
Alternatives 

• Approve the Green Box Revocable Permit application as written 
• Approve the Green Box Revocable Permit application with amendments 
• Not approve the current Green Box Revocable Permit application 

 
Conclusion 
 
Approving the Permit Application would allow another piece of Art to draw attention to Green Mountain Falls and 
beautify the area. 





























 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES AGENDA MEMO 

 
DATE: February 13, 2019 AGENDA NO  SUBJECT: 

Resolution 2019-06 Presented by:  

Laura Kotewa, Town Clerk 
 
 
Recommend action: 
 
Consider approval of this resolution, a correction of Resolution 2019-03 requested by the bank. 
 
 
Background:  
 
After Resolution 2019-03 was passed, when we spoke with the bank to make arrangements to sign signature cards, it 
was recommended by the bank that there was a name that needed to be removed as a signatory. 
 
 
Issue Before the Board: 
 
Does the Board wish to approve Resolution 2019-06? 

 
 
Alternatives 

• Approve as written 
• Approve with amendments 
• Not approve the resolution 

 
Conclusion 
 
Approving Resolution 2019-06 would clean up the records kept at the bank, ensure the right Town members listed as 
signatories, and keep our records up to date. 



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2019-06 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, 
COLORADO, DESIGNATING AUTHORIZED SIGNATORIES ON TOWN 
BANK ACCOUNTS AND INDIVIDUALS AUTHORIZED TO CONDUCT 

ONLINE BANKING ON BEHALF OF TOWN 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to designate the individuals with authority on 
behalf of the Town for activity involving the Town’s bank accounts 
 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF 
THE TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, COLORADO, THAT: 
 

Section 1. The following individuals shall be the sole authorized signatories on behalf 
of the Town for Town bank accounts: 

1. Jane Newberry, Mayor 
2. Tyler Stevens, Mayor Pro Tem 
3. Jason Wells, Interim Town Administrator 
4. Laura Kotewa, Town Clerk/Treasurer 

 
Section 2. The following individuals shall be the sole individuals authorized to access 

the Town’s bank accounts online and conduct online banking activity on behalf of the Town: 
1. Jason Wells, Interim Town Administrator 
2. Laura Kotewa, Town Clerk/Treasurer  

 
Section 3. The following individuals shall be removed from the authorized list of 

signatories and/or those authorized to access the Town’s bank accounts online or conduct online 
banking activities.  

1. Cameron Thorne 
 

 
INTRODUCED, READ and PASSED this 19th day of February 2019. 

 
 

TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, 
 COLORADO 

   
     

______________________________ 
Jane Newberry, Mayor 

(SEAL) 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
___________________________________                                                          
Laura Kotewa, Town Clerk 



1 
 

TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS 

ORDINANCE NO. 2019-01 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING ARTICLE V OF CHAPTER 2 OF THE GREEN 
MOUNTAIN FALLS MUNICIPAL CODE CONCERNING SOCIAL SECURITY AND 
RETIREMENT 

WHEREAS, the Board of Trustees desires to remove provisions addressing social security 
and retirement benefits that are included in the Green Mountain Falls Municipal Code; and 

WHEREAS, the Town will replace them with a policy concerning retirement benefits to 
be adopted by the Board of Trustees. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS, COLORADO: 

Section 1.  Article V of Chapter 2 of the Green Mountain Falls Municipal Code is 
hereby repealed in its entirety. 

Section 2. Safety Clause.  The Board of Trustees hereby finds, determines and declares 
that this Ordinance is promulgated under the general police power of the Town of Green Mountain 
Falls, that it is promulgated for the health, safety and welfare of the public and that this Ordinance 
is necessary for the preservation of health and safety and for the protection of public convenience 
and welfare.  The Board of Trustees further determines that this Ordinance bears a rational relation 
to the proper legislative object sought to be attained.  

Section 3. Severability.  If any clause, sentence, paragraph, or part of this Ordinance 
or the application thereof to any person or circumstances shall for any reason be adjudged by a 
court of competent jurisdiction invalid, such judgment shall not affect application to other persons 
or circumstances.  

Section 4. Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be effective thirty (30) days after 
passage. 

INTRODUCED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED the 5th day of February, 2019, at the 
Green Mountain Falls Town Hall, 10615 Green Mountain Falls Road, Green Mountain Falls, 
Colorado. 

ADOPTED AND ORDERED PUBLISHED the ___ day of ________________, 2019. 

 ________________________________ 
  Jane Newberry, Mayor  
ATTEST: 
 
__________________________________ 
Laura Kotewa, Town Clerk/Treasurer 
 
 
Published in the Pike Peaks Courier, ____________, 2019. 



• Sec. 2-86. - Appointed officers and employees, salaries. 

All appointed officers and employees of the Town shall receive such salary as shall be 
established by the Board of Trustees. 

• Sec. 2-87. -  Personnel policy. 

The Board of Trustees shall establish and publish a personnel policy to include but not be 
limited to vacations, holidays, leave, jury duty, etc. 

• Sec. 2-88. - Discipline and discharge. 

An employee may be discharged or disciplined for any of the following reasons: 
(1) 

Refusal or inability to follow orders. 
(2) 

Inefficiency. 
(3) 

Violation of departmental regulations, general regulations or laws. 
(4) 

Drinking on the job or working under the influence of alcohol. 
(5) 

Excessive tardiness. 
(6) 

Willful destruction of Town property. 
 



ARTICLE VII - Municipal Procurement Procedures[1]  

Sec. 4-121 - Definitions, exemptions.  

For the purposes of this Article, the following words and phrases will be construed as defined in this 
Section.  

(1) Contract . A binding agreement between parties for the supply of goods or services at a fixed 
price. Services shall include both professional services and construction services awarded to 
contractors.  

(2) Goods . Any of a group of products that can be bought and sold in an economy. Supplies, 
materials, and equipment are included in this group.  

(3) Procurement . The act or process of procuring something, that is to take possession of it by 
action or effort, to acquire it or obtain it. Both goods and services are in this process.  

(4) Purchase order . A commercial document used to request an entity to provide a good or service 
according to terms and specifications in return for payment.  

(5) Purchasing . The act or process of exchanging money or its equivalent for goods or property, to 
buy something.  

(6) Purchase requisition . A formal written request for something required.  

(7) Request for quotation . An RFQ is a standard business process whose purpose is to invite 
suppliers into a bidding process to bid on specific goods or services. An RFQ typically involves 
more than the price per item and includes purchase requisition data along with specifications of 
the goods or services. This process may also be referred to as a request for proposal (RFP) or 
an invitation for bid (IFB).  

(8) Sealed bid . A document prepared and submitted in response to an RFQ and enclosed in a 
glued (sealed) envelope. Sealed bids will be requested to be submitted in two (2) separate 
envelopes: One (1) for the technical proposal and one (1) for the commercial ("bid price") 
quotation. Sealed bids received up to the deadline date and time at the specified location are 
generally opened by the appointed authority, and anyone else who wishes to be present, 
cataloged, and entered into the evaluation process for award.  

(9) Single source . This refers to the instance where a supplier receives all the business for a 
particular item from a buyer. The incentives here are quantity discounts, single responsibility, 
prompt deliveries, and the like.  

(10) Sole source . This refers to a situation where alternative suppliers are not available to provide 
exactly the same product with exactly the same specifications.  

(11) Value analysis . A method of evaluating the cost of a good or service with the objective of 
reducing the cost by changing specifications to accomplish the same function or purpose.  

(Ord. No. 10-6-2015B, § 1, 10-6-2015) 

Sec. 4-122. - Organization and authority.  

(1) This Section applies to purchases and/or contracts for the procurement of goods, services, and 
construction entered into by the Town of Green Mountain Falls (GMF). It shall apply to every 
expenditure of public funds by a public agency for procurement whether it is from GMF funds or out 
of monies under the control of the GMF. When the procurement involves the expenditure of State or 
County assistance or contract funds, the procurement shall also be conducted in accordance with 
any applicable mandatory State or County laws and regulations, which are not reflected in this 
Section. Nothing in this Section shall prevent any public agency from complying with the terms and 
conditions of any grant, gift, or bequest, which are otherwise consistent with law.  



(2) Under this Section, the Town Treasurer is established as the Purchasing Agent for GMF. The 
Purchasing Agent shall administer all procurement functions, all procurement documentation, and 
proper signature authority in accordance with this Section. Purchasing Agent responsibilities are 
covered in Section 4-125.  

(Ord. No. 10-6-2015B, § 1, 10-6-2015) 

Sec. 4-123. - General procurement policies.  

(1) All procurement transactions within GMF, whether by quote, sealed bid, negotiation, or other format 
allowed under this Section, shall be conducted in a manner that provides maximum open and free 
competition.  

(2) All procurement transactions within GMF shall be managed by Purchase Order (PO), which shall be 
issued by the Purchasing Agent. Purchase Orders shall be issued for goods, services, and 
construction as further defined in Section 4-126.  

(3) A GMF PO shall not be issued to any entity in which an elected official or employee of GMF has a 
controlling interest.  

(4) Whenever possible, in keeping with free and open competitive procedures, GMF businesses shall be 
considered for and added to supplier lists.  

(5) GMF actively promotes the purchase of supplies, materials, and equipment made with recycled 
materials. Accordingly, recycled products should be purchased when quality and performance are 
not compromised and when the price of such products made with recycled materials generally does 
not exceed the price of non-recycled products by more than five percent (5%).  

(6) The solicitation of offers and requests for quotations or proposals sent to prospective vendors shall 
include a clear and accurate description of the requirements of the goods or services to be procured. 
The description should not contain features that unduly restrict competition. Generally a 
performance-type solicitation is preferred. A "brand name or equal" description may be used as a 
means to define the performance or other solicitation requirements of the request.  

(7) Procurement awards should only be made to qualified vendors for goods and services who possess 
the ability and assets to perform successfully under the terms and conditions of the proposed 
procurement and to provide future services to back-up warranty provisions. Vendor integrity, past 
performance, financial ability to perform, and references may be used as guidelines for determining 
vendor selection.  

(8) Goods or services for procurement shall not be subdivided for the purpose of circumventing any 
dollar value limitations established by this Section.  

(Ord. No. 10-6-2015B, § 1, 10-6-2015) 

Sec. 4-124. - Procurement actions and limitations.  

(1) The procurement process has its origination in the annual budget approved by the BoT at the 
beginning of each fiscal year. The budget is made up of line items that represent each department's 
expected expenditures for the year, i.e., items that need to be procured, whether goods or services, 
to carry out each department's mission. The Department Head is responsible for developing the 
department budget.  

(2) Department Heads usually initiate the procurement procedure by selecting one (1) of their approved 
budget line items and notifying the Purchasing Agent of their intention to obtain goods or services by 
completing a purchase requisition (PR). The PR must contain details of the item, which may require 
a specification document. A PR template is shown in attachment 4-A.  



(3) Dollar value limitations for procurement actions are as follows:  

(a) If a purchase need is identified as a line item in a Department Head's approved budget and is 
under one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), the Department Head can initiate purchase under 
his/her own discretion with completion of a PR and submittal to the Purchasing Agent.  

(b) If a purchase need is not identified as a line item in a Department Head's approved budget and 
is under one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), the Department Head must go to his Trustee Liaison 
to review the purchase need and place it into a budget line item or develop a new line item for 
the Trustee Liaison to present to the BoT for approval. Once approved, the procedure will revert 
to (a) above.  

(c) If a purchase need is identified as a line item in a Department Head's approved budget and is 
equal to or over one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) and less than five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00), the Department Head in consultation with the Trustee Liaison will decide when a 
quotation is needed from qualified vendors. Details of the quotation procedure are contained in 
Section 4-127. Once a vendor is selected, procurement procedure can proceed as per (a) 
above.  

(d) If a purchase need is not identified as a line item in a Department Head's approved budget and 
is equal to or over one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) and less than five thousand dollars 
($5,000.00), the Department Head must go to his Trustee Liaison to review the purchase need 
and place it into a budget line item or develop a new line item for the Trustee Liaison to present 
to the BoT for approval. The Department Head in consultation with the Trustee Liaison will then 
decide when a quotation is needed from qualified vendors. With BoT approval, receipt of 
quotations, and vendor selection, the procedure will revert to (a) above. Details of the quotation 
procedure are contained in Section 4-127.  

(e) If a purchase need is identified as a line item in a Department Head's approved budget and is 
equal to or over five thousand dollars ($5,000.00), three (3) quotations are needed from 
qualified vendors along with BoT's approval. Details of the quotation procedure are contained in 
Section 4-127. Once a vendor is selected, procurement procedure can proceed as per (a) 
above.  

(f) If a purchase need is not identified as a line item in a Department Head's approved budget and 
is equal to or over five thousand dollars ($5,000.00), the Department Head must go to his 
Trustee Liaison to review the purchase need and place it into a budget line item or develop a 
new line item for the Trustee Liaison to present to the BoT for approval. With BoT approval, 
receipt of three (3) quotations, and vendor selection, the procedure will revert to (a) above. 
Details of the quotation procedure are contained in Section 4-127.  

(4) Once Department Heads have completed their PR's as described above, the Purchasing Agent will 
issue the appropriate PO as defined in Section 4-126.  

(5) The copy of the PO that goes to the Department Head will serve as the receiving report, which must 
be completed by the receiving department and sent to the Purchasing Agent in order for subsequent 
vendor invoices to be paid. Any deviation between the description of the item in the PO and the 
actual item as received must be noted in the receiving report.  

(Ord. No. 10-6-2015B, § 1, 10-6-2015) 

Sec. 4-125. - Purchasing Agent responsibilities.  

(1) The Purchasing Agent has the authority to purchase supplies, materials, and equipment, and 
contract for services and construction according to the directions and stipulations of this Section. 
This includes issuing approved PO's, following up with expediting actions, managing/verifying 
receiving reports, approving vendor invoices for payment, issuing procurement status reports, and 
maintaining procurement records for all transactions.  



(2) Specifically, the Purchasing Agent shall:  

(a) Have the authority to manage the purchase order system within the directions set by this 
Section.  

(b) Issue PO's, RFQ's, and other procurement documents.  

(c) Monitor the compliance of Department Heads with this Section, including the maintenance and 
adherence to economy, efficiency, and accountability.  

(d) Maintain the list for proper signature authority for approval of all procurement documentation.  

(e) Establish and maintain terms and conditions for PO's in conjunction with Town Attorney.  

(f) Ensure that the department purchases meet all budget requirements.  

(g) Review annually the existing blanket purchase orders to determine whether there are 
justifications for their renewal, and assist in obtaining monthly charge accounts with the blanket 
purchase order holders.  

(h) Establish and maintain lists of qualified vendors and prepare a preferred vendors list for each 
RFQ.  

(i) Document vendors who default on their quotations, misuse GMF bid lists or specifications for 
purposes other than intended by GMF, or fail to deliver specified goods and services. The 
Purchasing Agent will recommend disqualification of these vendors for receiving future RFQ's 
from GMF with approval by the BoT.  

(j) Order goods and services from qualified vendors that meet the budgeted needs and 
specifications of the departments in a timely, economical, efficient, and ethical manner.  

(k) Establish and maintain purchasing forms and assure that all documentation is correctly filled-out 
in compliance with auditing procedures and this Section.  

(l) Secure all tax exemptions for which GMF is entitled whenever applicable.  

(m) Assist in the gainful disposal of any surplus or scrap items.  

(Ord. No. 10-6-2015B, § 1, 10-6-2015) 

Sec. 4-126. - Purchase order procedure.  

(1) The procurement process is managed by PO's issued by the Purchasing Agent. There are three (3) 
types of PO's:  

(a) The blanket purchase order—This purchase order is issued to a vendor where recurring 
purchases, of a relatively minor nature, are expected. An example of this is an auto parts store 
where clamps, brake pads, and light bulbs are obtained, and monthly invoices are sent for 
payment. A blanket purchase order is valid for one (1) fiscal year, unless sooner revoked.  

(b) The supply purchase order—This purchase order is issued to a vendor for a one-time purchase 
of goods. An example of this is the purchase of batons for the Police Department.  

(c) The contract purchase order—This purchase order is issued to a vendor for services and/or 
construction and is accompanied by a contract. Services, e.g., engineering or other professional 
services, would be obtained in this manner. Construction of facilities, e.g., a fence, would be 
authorized with the issuance of a contract purchase order. Details for completing the contract 
document are contained in Section 4-128.  

(2) Once a PR is received from a Department Head and checked for completeness by the Purchasing 
Agent, preparation of the appropriate PO will begin.  

(a) A PO is required for each procurement activity.  



(b) PO's will contain the budget line item number, description from the PR, and the purchase price 
for the item to be purchased. The Purchasing Agent will verify that the item is within budget and 
that funds are available to cover the purchase before issuing the PO to both the Department 
Head and the vendor. All vendor correspondence, including billing documents, must contain the 
PO number in order to be recognized by the Purchasing Agent.  

(c) Once a PO has been completed, the Purchasing Agent will proceed to collect the necessary 
signatures. For PO's in the amount of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) or more, a BoT member 
will sign after BoT approval. For PO's in the amount of one thousand dollars ($1,000.00) or 
more, but less than five thousand dollars ($5,000.00), the Trustee Liaison will sign. For PO's 
less than one thousand dollars ($1,000.00), only the Treasure signature is required.  

(d) The Purchasing Agent will verify that a PO has been accepted by the vendor.  

(e) Follow-up and expediting of a PO once issued will be shared by the Purchasing Agent and the 
Department Head with the Purchasing Agent taking the lead and maintaining records.  

(3) PO templates are contained in attachment 4-B.  

(Ord. No. 10-6-2015B, § 1, 10-6-2015) 

Sec. 4-127. - Quotation procedure.  

(1) A quotation is required for each item to be procured, as every PO is priced.  

(2) A request for quotation (RFQ) is completed for each quotation needed. The RFQ contains 
information from the completed PR along with specifications and any other data that describe the 
item to be quoted. Further the RFQ gives instructions to vendors, e.g., due date of submitted 
quotation, time and place for submittal, retention of the right to reject any or all quotations, and any 
special requirements, and sets forth the factors to be considered in the evaluation.  

(3) As stated in Section 4-124, three (3) quotations are required for goods or services costing over five 
thousand dollars ($5,000.00). Additional RFQ's may be sent as determined among the Purchasing 
Agent, Trustee Liaison, and Department Head.  

(4) When multiple quotations are sought, instructions to vendors will specify response by "sealed bid". 
Instructions for sealed bids will include date, time, and location for submittal of the envelopes, 
markings to be included on the envelope exterior, and any other information to the vendors.  

(5) Advertisement for quotations for goods or services shall be posted at the Town Hall and on the GMF 
website. For construction services that exceed five thousand dollars ($5,000.00), advertisement will 
be posted in an area newspaper not more than thirty (30) days, but not less than ten (10) days, 
before opening of sealed bids. Advertisements shall contain:  

(a) Description of the item to be procured.  

(b) Location where contract documents can be picked up.  

(c) Date, time, and location where quotations are received and opened.  

(d) Statement that GMF reserves the right to reject any or all quotations.  

(e) Statement setting forth requirements for bid bonds.  

(f) Statement regarding any state requirements.  

(g) Statement disallowing quotation withdrawal based upon computational error.  

(h) Date, time, and location of a pre-construction walk-through.  

(i) Requirement that all quotations are signed.  

(6) With the receipt of two (2) envelopes, as specified in Section 4-121(8), from each prospective vendor 
for each RFQ, the evaluation authority, which will be appointed by the BoT with at least one (1) BoT 



member, will open and evaluate the technical envelopes first, and rank the vendors according to 
technical compliance, competence, and "best understanding" of specifications and requirements, 
using the evaluation factors stated in the RFQ.  

(7) After all vendors have been ranked according to their technical response, a public notice, which 
states date, time, and location, will be posted two (2) days before the commercial envelopes will be 
opened, cataloged, and matched to the corresponding technical ranking of vendors. Should best 
technical ranking match lowest price submitted, the winner of the RFQ will be announced, along with 
the Purchasing Agent instructed to proceed to prepare the PO for the good or service. Should best 
technical ranking and lowest price not match, the sealed bid documents will be remanded to the 
evaluation authority for further evaluation and recommendation.  

(8) The recommendation for the winning quotation will be based upon the proposal that is the most 
advantageous to GMF. Price is a factor; however, the award will not necessarily be made to the 
vendor offering the lowest price. When lowest price is not selected, the evaluation authority will 
prepare a statement of the decision points for submittal to the BoT. Further, life-cycle costs and/or 
value analysis may be considered by the evaluating authority in its recommendation. The Purchasing 
Agent will use the recommendation for preparation of the PO.  

(9) When dealing with governmental agencies, the Board of Trustees reserves the right to waive the 
provisions of this section by a majority vote of the Board members present.  

(Ord. No. 10-6-2015B, § 1, 10-6-2015) 

Sec. 4-128. - Contracts.  

(1) The Town Attorney will provide the format and language for the contracts and will approve all 
contracts.  

(2) Contracts will primarily be developed for construction services; however, they may be used for other 
services.  

(3) All contracts once approved will be attached to a PO for issue to the vendor/contractor, in order to 
take advantage of established accounting and management procedures.  

(4) Several types of contracts can be employed to obtain services:  

(a) Fixed price/fixed rate price.  

(b) Cost plus fixed fee.  

(c) Cost reimbursable.  

(d) Performance based.  

(5) Primary clauses of a contract specify the description of the services to be performed, the contract 
term or period, and method of compensation/payment. Other clauses may address the following: 
Performance of services, insurance, bonds, warranty, intellectual property, termination, reports, 
indemnity, liability, arbitration, etc.  

(6) Certain stipulations may be unacceptable in contract clauses:  

(a) Other laws than those of Colorado used in interpretation and execution.  

(b) Requirement to hold third parties harmless.  

(c) Impose penalties on late payments.  

(d) Requirements for pre-payments.  

(e) Limit the liability of the vendor/contractor.  

(f) Provide for binding arbitration of disputes outside Colorado.  



(7) Bid bonds may be required in the response from the vendors/contractors. The bid bond guarantees 
that bidder will execute a contract with GMF at the bid price upon award to the vendor/contractor. 
Other bonds, e.g., a performance bond, may be considered by the Town Attorney.  

(8) When dealing with governmental agencies, the Board of Trustees reserves the right to waive the 
provisions of this Section by a majority vote of the Board members present.  

(Ord. No. 10-6-2015B, § 1, 10-6-2015) 

Sec. 4-129. - Emergency procurement.  

(1) The Department Head will declare a state of an emergency, which requires immediate procurement 
of goods or services. In this case, the provisions of this Article requiring competitive bidding and 
other stipulations shall be waived.  

(2) An emergency is defined as:  

(a) Needs that could not have been anticipated under an approved, effective departmental 
procurement plan.  

(b) Needs that endanger lives or property, or affect the health and safety of the public, or threaten 
the continuation of vital services to the public.  

(c) Needs that result from failure to plan departmental purchases do not constitute an emergency.  

(3) Every effort will be made to place the emergency procurement with an established vendor.  

(4) In the event of an emergency procurement, the Department Head is required to immediately submit 
to the Purchasing Agent an explanation for the declaration of an emergency and the required 
purchase documentation.  

(Ord. No. 10-6-2015B, § 1, 10-6-2015) 

Sec. 4-130. - Surplus property disposal.  

(1) Goods that are candidates to be declared "surplus" shall be declared by the Department Head in 
consultation with the Trustee Liaison.  

(2) The Purchasing Agent shall be notified of any goods that are declared surplus.  

(3) Goods determined to be of surplus nature, i.e., those items deemed of no further use to GMF and/or 
are obsolete, worn out, or scrapped, shall be subject to disposal in the following manner:  

(a) Prior to sale or disposal of goods and equipment no longer of use to a department, the 
Department Head shall notify the Purchasing Agent of the availability of the surplus item. The 
item shall be offered to other GMF departments prior to sale or disposal.  

(b) An item with a fair market value of less than five hundred dollars ($500.00) shall be disposed of 
at the discretion of the Department Head with best negotiated sale price.  

(c) An item with a fair market value of more than five hundred dollars ($500.00) and less than five 
thousand dollars ($5,000.00) at the time of disposal, as established by the Department Head, 
shall be disposed of with the approval of the Trustee Liaison with the best negotiated price.  

(d) An item with a fair market value in excess of five thousand dollars ($5,000.00) at the time of 
disposal, as established by the Department Head, shall receive at least two (2) bids for review 
with the Trustee Liaison before disposal by approved means.  

(e) Any item with a fair market value of more than ten thousand dollars ($10,000.00), and any real 
property or interest in real property, must be approved as surplus and thereafter disposed of as 
determined by the BoT.  



(4) Monies received from the sale of surplus goods shall be placed into a "general income" account for 
distribution by BoT approval.  

(Ord. No. 10-6-2015B, § 1, 10-6-2015) 

Secs. 4-131—4-150. - Reserved.  



TOWN OF GREEN MOUNTAIN FALLS 
PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING 

Tuesday, February 12, 2019 – 6:30 P.M. 
 
 

MEETING MINUTES 
 

PC Members Present 
Chairman Eric Caldwell 
Vice Chairman Dick Bratton 
Commissioner Rocco Blasi 
Commissioner Nathan Scott 

PC Members Absent 
Mayor Jane Newberry 
Commissioner Gregory Williamson 

 
Secretary 
Katharine Guthrie 

 
 

1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
Chairman Eric Caldwell called the meeting to order at 6:34 pm. 

 
 
2. Additions, Deletions, or Corrections to the Agenda 

M/S: Vice Chairman Bratton/Chairman Caldwell 
Motion: Move to approve the agenda as amended (addition of 5d regarding the 
migration to electronic packets). 
Vote: Motion carried. All yea. 

 
 
3. Approve Minutes of January 22, 2019 

M/S: Vice Chairman Bratton/Chairman Caldwell 
Motion: Move to approve minutes as submitted following the correction of the 
spelling of Commissioner Williamson’s name. 
Vote: Motion carried. All yea. 

 
 
4. Public Input 

None 
 
 
5. New Business 

a. Plan review—2 Carsell Way/New Fire Station—Construction Drawings 
M/S: Chair Eric Caldwell/Vice Chair Dick Bratton 
Motion: Move to approve plans as submitted. 
Vote: Motion carried. All yea. 
Resolution: Plans stamped and plans to be scanned 
b. Plan Review—11150 Belvedere-Deck-Greg Williamson 
M/S: Chair Caldwell/Rocco Blasi 
Motion: Move to approve the plan as submitted with the condition that appropriate 

fees are paid. 
Vote: Motion carried. All yea. 



 
 
Page 2 Planning Commission Minutes February 12, 2019 

 
 

Resolution: Plans stamped. To collect appropriate fees, Town clerk will mail Plan 
Review forms to Mike Correu, Project Manager. 

c. Rezone—Town Hall Parcel from B to P-F Recommended to Town Board—Vice 
Chair Bratton 

Town Attorney to be consulted to see if town code and zoning change can be done 
concurrently. 

M/S: Chair Caldwell/Rocco Blasi 
Motion: Table item until the next PC meeting. 
Vote: Motion carried. 3:1 Blasi, Caldwell, Scott—yea. Bratton—no. 
d. Migration to electronic packets for the Planning Commission 
Commission approve the transition. 

 
 
6. Old Business 

a. Consideration of Approval of Frequently Asked Questions having been assigned 
to Chair Caldwell. 

Feedback—additional questions to be included, additional definitions, and 
standardized terminology for clarity. A matrix for projects, permits, variances, and plan 
reviews that includes Regional Building and Green Mountain Falls requirements. 

b. Consideration of Approval of Plan Review Checklist (Old “Green Sheet”) having 
been assigned to Vice Chair Dick Bratton 

To be addressed at the next PC meeting 
c. Consideration of Approval of Request for PC Review Form having been prepared 

by Vice Chair Dick Bratton 
To be finalized by administrative staff 
d. Discussion of revision to Sec 16-705 Architectural Review-(c)(1) Materials 

“Corrugated metal, plastic, and fiberglass are prohibited” having been assigned to 
Commissioner Williamson 

To be addressed when Commissioner Williamson is present. 
 
7. Comp Plan 

a. Progress Report 
No discussion 
b. Comp Plan—Review new draft of Base Map 
No discussion 
c. Discuss Tiny Homes/Small Houses/Park Model Houses—Chair Caldwell 
“How do we define affordable housing?” to be addressed at the next PC meeting. 



Page 3 Planning Commission Minutes February 12, 2019 
 
 
8. Adjourn 

 
Adjourned at 7:26 pm 

 
 
 

Eric Caldwell-Chairman 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
Katharine Guthrie-Secretary 



 Town of Green Mountain Falls

Memorandum

To: Mayor and Board of Trustees
From: Jason S. Wells, Interim Town Manager
Re: Management Report
Date: February 19, 2019

1) Flood Response
a) Outside Funding Eligibility/Disaster Declaration 

i) Outside Funding Sources  
(1) Department of Local Affairs – $139,730 awarded to address below project needs

(a) 50% local match decreased to 25% upon request due to proof of financial hardship 
(b) Executed Grant Contract Delivered on 12/14; Now Active 

(2) NRCS Emergency Watershed Protection Program
(a) Damage Survey Report (DSR) Completed – estimated $400K (appx.) in channel stabilization needs
(b) Private property eligibility 
(c) 25% local match required – Appx. $100K
(d)  No Effect on NRCS Due to Fed Shut-Down; Announcement on Funding Likely Imminent
(e) NEPA Review Partially Completed 

(i) Biological Clearance Granted on 1/30
(ii) Cultural Review Pending
(iii) Announcement on Funding Likely Imminent 

b) Priority Projects 
i) Midland Culvert Replacement - $51,715

(1) Next Steps – Design/Permitting/Construction Bid Solicitation – Awaiting Wilson & Co. proposal 
ii) Maple St. Bridge Repair - $35,184 – Due to Condition, Outreach to County to Possibility Utilize On-Call List 
iii) Olathe/Belvidere Sediment Removal - $26,413 

(1) Possible Coordination w/ Belvidere Ave Resurfacing Project in Spring
iv) El Paso Trail Road Rehabilitation - $40,711 
v) Iona Ave Culvert Replacement - $32,282 

2) Departmental Info 
a) Town Clerk

i) See included comprehensive report 
ii) Items of Mutual Clerk/Mgr. Interest

(1) Event Management Processes 
(2) Planning/Land Use-Related Processes  

b) Marshall’s Office
i) Verbal report to be provided 
ii) General Guidance re: Future of Old Marshal’s Office Building 

c) Public Works 
i) Parks



Management Report
January 27, 2017

2

(1) Water Service – CSU Regulatory Compliance/Backflow Preventers ** On Hold Due to Staffing/Funding 
(2) Restrooms – 2019 Capital Reserve Priority 

ii) Road Maintenance 
(1) Outsourcing - Culvert Clean-Outs; Olathe Ave Pilot Project 
(2) Implementation of Defined Zone-Based Maintenance Protocols 
(3) Researching Outsource Options for Culvert Clean-Outs 

iii) Belvidere Ave Improvement Project – deferred to spring, 2019 per County decision 
iv) Lake/Park Improvements

(1) Preparing Hiring Process for Seasonal Assistance (April-Sept) 
(2) Memorial Park Bench Policy? 

d) Pool 
i) Need to Establish Supervisory Role, Perhaps Via Student Internships (Laura) 

e) Planning/Land Use
i) Revocable Permit Audit? 
ii) Clarification of Application Requirements, Mandated Processes, Fees, Etc. 

(1) Plan Review 
(a) Grading Plans 
(b) Site/Development Plans 
(c) Architectural Design/Building Plans 
(d) Others?

(2) Revocable Permits
(3) Grading Permits/Erosion Control Plans   
(4) Fence/Shed Permits  

iii)  New Fire Station Construction 
(1) Required Code Approvals 

(a) Grading Permit 
(b) Site Review 
(c) Erosion Control Plan Review 

iv) Establishment of Staff Planning Function 
(1) Americorps VISTA Program 

(a) Project Description Now Available Here 
(b) Applications Beginning to Arrive 

(2) Possible PPACG Technical Assistance Via Mini-Grant Award  
v) Short-Term Rental Operations – Implementation of New Licensing Structure 
vi) Economic Development 

(a) Fiber Optics/Broadband
(b) Follow Through on EPC Enterprise Zone Designation - ** On Hold  

vii) Request to Elevate Portion of Iona Rd. 
(1) Referred to Planning Commission for Initial Consideration

f) Human Resources 
i) Employee Handbook Adoption/Revision Process – see separate agenda item 
ii) Town Clerk Coordination w/ Town Manager on Comprehensive Job Description Revisions
iii) Recruitment Process for Town Manager Position – See Separate Agenda Item   



Management Report
January 27, 2017

3

iv) Needed Personnel Policies (in addition to recently-adopted Employee Handbook)
(1) Compensation policies – GovPro Assisting 
(2) Cell phone stipend policy 
(3) Vehicle use policy 

v) Volunteer Utilization Policies Needed - ** On Hold 
g) Finance

(1) Vendor Permitting – See Separate Agenda Item 
h) Information Technology

i) Website
(1) Site Content Being Constantly Increased/Managed 

(a) New Citizen Concern Reporting Mechanism Now Operational 
ii) Hardware assessment/capital planning/desktop support

(1) Priority Hardware/Services Procured w/ Remaining 2018 Budget Allowances
(2) Coordinating with Consultant on Meeting Other Priority Needs with 2019 Budget Allocation 
(3) Negotiating with Desktop Support/Data Back-Up Entity  

3) Grants 
a) Q4 Requests for Reimbursement Are Due 

i) DoLA Town Manager Grant - $56,161.62 remaining as of Oct. 1 (of original $125K award)    
ii) Comp Plan Update Grant – 

(1) DoLA Grant - $34,977.50 remaining as of Oct. 1 (of original $50K award) 
(2) HGMFF – Reimbursement Requests for remaining 50 percent submitted; progress report needed  

b) Kirkpatrick Foundation Sidewalk Replacement Grant 
c) Fishing is Fun Automated Lake Valve Grant - 2/13 Discussion w/ State Wildlife Contact 
d) CDBG - Lake Access Grant - $7,500 – ADA Fishing Pier – Meeting with EPC Staff on 2/1 

i) Notice to Proceed Issued on 9/5
ii) Project Management/Grant Administration Needs  

4) Intergovernmental 
a) El Paso County – Disaster Recovery Plan participation 1/30 meeting 
b) Pike’s Peak Area Council of Governments 

i) DoLA Mini-Grant for GIS Needs 
c) Colorado Springs Utilities 

i) Coordination w/ Utility Regarding Street Light Billing
(1) Public Input
(2) Field Inventory 

d) Green Mountain Falls/Chipita Park Fire Department 
i) Input on Fire Restriction Stages – See separate ordinance 

5) Insurance Administration  
a) CIRSA

i) Claims 
(1) June 24th Hail Damage 

(a) Adjuster Estimate - $41,899 ($33,269 received less depreciation) 
(b) Solicitation of Quotes from Multiple Roofing Companies Completed  
(c) Next Steps 



Management Report
January 27, 2017

4

(i) Coordinate with CIRSA on Quotes
(ii) Execute Contract with Preferred Roofer
(iii) Work to Commence in Spring 

6) Emergency Management 
a) Coordination w/ CUSP re: Fire Mitigation Efforts Underway 

7) Legal 
a) Established/Required Rezoning Process – Town Hall Rezone Needed 
b) Vendor Permitting – Guidance Needed 
c) Discontinuance of Incorporation – District Court Position re: Petition Review   
d) Franchise Agreements/Assets Affixed to Abandoned Utility Poles

i) CenturyLink – Established Contact with Director of Regulatory and Government Affairs Toward Resolution



 

The Town of  Green Mountain Falls 
P.O. Box 524, 10615 Green Mountain Falls Road, Green Mountain Falls, CO  80819 
  (719) 684-9414,  www.gmfco.us 
 

To:  Mayor and Board of Trustees 

From:  Laura J. Kotewa Town Clerk 

Re:  Town Clerk Report 

Date:  February 19, 2019 

Routine activities continuing 

• Gazebo rentals   
• Payroll 
• Accounts payable 
• Agenda packet preparation 
• Meeting management 
• Legal notices and postings 

 Training 

 I have begun some other-than-internal training.  My first, on Feb. 7th, was an orientation with 
 Employer’s Council.  PPCC will be stopping in soon to do town training needs assessment since we 
 have a great starting point in offering so many new positions. There is a training called Bring Your A 
 Game to Work that is particularly interesting, and would be great for our lifeguards in particular as they 
 enter the work world. 

IT 

Springs IT has been here to make an assessment and to install software that will allow them the ability 
to gain access to our equipment to make updates.  We have a completed contract ready for signature 
to start paying our monthly service fee.  Conversation is ongoing regarding our servers, and what other 
alternatives we may have to replacing them or using a cloud based server, including using Office 365 
which would give staff a place for storage and Microsoft product access, and afford staff and the Board 
domain-based named email addresses. 

           Process Improvement 

Work continues on a new Chart of Accounts and 2018 year end closing as we get our final requests for 
reimbursements and tax income entered.   

We have pool information gathered for our former management team to go over and make whatever 
changes are deemed necessary in preparation for hiring a Lead Pool Attendant, and several other pool 
attendants.  We are hoping to have a cash register this year, along with required shift end reports. 

In an attempt to cut some unessential expenses, we have contacted Century Link to disconnect 
services for the time of the year the pool is not in use.  This will save the Town $50-70 per month during 



the pool off season, and we can reconnect service with the same number each year during pool 
season. 

Planning Commission support 

The part time Planning Technician posting has been uploaded to the Town Website. 

Unmet needs 

• Purchase of a new Printer 
 

 



              The Town of       Green Mountain Falls 

                     P.O. Box 524, 10290 E. El Paso Ave., Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819, (719) 684-7850 

 
 

1 
 

The Town of Green Mountain Falls Monthly Maintenance 
Report 

January 2019 

 
To the BOT, Staff and Citizens of GMF 

Public Works:   
 
1st – Snow Removal Operations and Sanding 
2nd – Sanded steeps and slippery roadways, repaired snow chains, vehicle maintenance  
3rd – CDL Testing, Danny sick,  
4th – Road Assessments (Icy), Sanded Belvidere and all steep roadways, plowed slush, Town 
Hall trash, plowed slush and sanded after afternoon melt. 
7th – Time sheets and attached activity log, Road assessment, Turned in invoices and time 
sheets/log, Sun State for calendars, December monthly maintenance report  
8th – Road Assessment, Fuel’d up equipment, Preventative maintenance on the skid/roller/grader, 
Graded Hondo (seg 1&2) and Foster, Rolled Hondo (seg 1&2) and Foster 
9th – Graded Hondo (seg 3&4), Rolled Hondo (seg 3&4), Graded and rolled E. El Paso Ave. 
10th – Vehicle Maintenance, took down Christmas lights and garland off the bridge/gazebo/land 
office, Snow prep  
11th – Snow Removal Operations and Sanding  
12th – Snow Removal Operations and Sanding 
13th – Snow Removal Operations and Sanding 
14th – Road assessments, measurements and blueprints for new town hall storage room shelves, 
Ordered Diesel and gas from Chief Petroleum 
15th – Road assessments (slippery areas), Received Land Office/GMF Contract 
16th – Bear trash/restrooms check, picked up and organized shop, Received fuel order, Town 
Hall, Shop paperwork/invoices 
17th – Worked on Sander, Town Hall Christmas lights, Packed and put town hall’s Christmas 
deco away, vehicle maintenance  



              The Town of       Green Mountain Falls 

                     P.O. Box 524, 10290 E. El Paso Ave., Green Mountain Falls, CO 80819, (719) 684-7850 

 
 

2 
 

18th – Woodland Hardware for town hall building maintenance supplies, Snow Removal, 
sanding icy and slippery roadways, Vehicle Maintenance, Tire chains repair, Sanded and plowed 
slush 
21st – Holiday! 
22nd – Snow Removal Operations and Sanding 
23rd – Snow Removal Operations and Sanding 
24th – Road assessment, shop trash, serviced sanders, office paperwork 
25th – Office paperwork and organized office, tire chain repairs, picked up shop, washed work 
trucks, road assessments  
28th – Snow Removal Operations and Sanding 
29th – Road Assessments, Auto Truck, Began January’s Maint Report, picked up shop, town hall 
trash, cleaned and moped town hall restrooms 
30th – Vehicle maintenance, installed new ram on large plow, Bear trash and Lake park checks 
31st – Road assessments, organized and picked up shop, washed work trucks, moved barricades, 
moved sediment and large boulder from on the hill behind shop. 
 
  
 
 

Maintenance Report:  

 

To the BOT and Staff 
Public Works Department 
Danny Vanderhoef 
719-684-7850 


	Agenda 2.19.19
	2019.2.5 minutes draft
	bills run 2.13-14, 2019
	MEMO for Resolution 2019-07
	resolution 2019-07 opting in to local only approval for special events permits
	MEMO Special Event Permit - Combat Vets
	2019.1.29 State Liquor Application Combat Veterans
	2019-02-11 - Wilson and Company Contract - Drainage Mitigation-A021119
	MEMO Green Box Revocable Permit Application
	Green Box Art REvocable Permit Application with backup
	Special Event Permit - Green Box Arts Weekend in the Park
	MEMO Resolution 2019-06
	2019 resolution 06 banking authority
	Ordinance 2019-01 Retirement Repeal
	Sec. 2-86-88 Personnel Salaries-Policies
	PC DRAFT minutes 2_12_19
	Town Manager Report
	2019.2.19 Clerk report
	2019-02-05 - GMF Maintenance report January

